CARR-82

Carroll Primitive Baptist Meeting House
Watersville (vicinity) c. 1857

The Carroll Primitive Baptist Meeting House (also known as the Old School Baptist
Church or the Davis Meeting House) is built on a two-acre lot donated to the church trustees by
Henry Shipley Davis in November 1856. According to a recent church history, the building was
dedicated on 27 September 1857. It is very typical of churches built in Carroll County
throughout the nineteenth century, as most had two entrances on one gable end and were a
simple rectangular box. The use of a gallery was not uncommon, although a majority of
sanctuary’s did not have them. It is the only such church of this denomination known in Carroll
County. The virtually pristine condition of the building, however, is much more unusual and
gives this particular sanctuary added significance.




Survey No. CARR-82

. . Magi No.
Maryland Historical Trust
State Historic Sites Inventory Form DOE __yes _ no
1. Name (indicate preferred name)
historic  Carrpll Primitive Baptist Meeting House
and/orcommon  pavig Meeting House
2. Location
street & number  Watersville Road and Watersville Road W. — not for publication
city, town Watersville X vicinity of congressional district
state Maryland county Carroll
3. Classification
Category Ownership Status Present Use
____district ___ public X occupied ____ agriculture ____ museum
X building(s) X private ____unoccupied . commercial _ park
__ structure — both _ work in progress ____ educational ____ private residence
____ site Public Acquisition Accessible ____ entertainment X_ religious
___ object ____in process _X vyes: restricted ___ government ____ scientific
— being considered ____ yes: unrestricted ___ industrial —_ transportation
Xnot applicable _  no ___ military ___ other:

4- Owner Of Property (give names and mailing addresses of all owners)

name
street & number telephone no.:
city, town state and zip code

5. Location of Legal Description

courthouse, registry of deeds, etc. Courthouse Annex liber 21
street & number 55 North Court Street folio 226
city, town Westminster state MD

6. Representation in Existing uistorical surveys

title

date — federal ___state ____county ___ local

pository for survey records

city, town state




7. Description Survey No. CARR-82

Condition Check one Check one

X excellent ___ deteriorated __X unaltered _X_ original site

____good _____ruins ____ altered ____moved date of move
____ fair ___ unexposed

Prepare both a summary paragraph and a general description of the resource and its
various elements as it exists today.

Summary: The Carroll Primitive Baptist Meeting House is located at the northwest
corner of the intersection of Watersville Road W. and Watersville Road. It is a two-bay
by two-bay, one-story structure with a rubble stone foundation, clapboard siding with
corner boards, and a gable roof with asphalt shingles. The east elevation has two doors
set in bullnose frames. The north, south, and west elevations each have two 9/6 sash.
The sanctuary has a random width pine board floor, plastered walls, and flat plastered
ceiling. The windows have pedimented surrounds. On the west end is a panelled pulpit.
In the northeast corner of the sanctuary is an enclosed winder staircase up to a balcony
on the east end.

The Carroll Primitive Baptist Meeting House is located at the northwest corner of
the intersection of Watersville Road W. and Watersville Road, approximately one mile
northwest of the town of Watersville and three miles east of Mount Airy, in southwestern
Carroll County. The building sits on a level lot with several large old trees surrounding
it, and faces east toward Watersville Road. It is a two-bay by two-bay, one-story
structure with a rubble stone foundation, clapboard siding with corner boards, and a gable
roof with asphalt shingles and a ridge that runs east-west.

The east elevation has two doors set in bullnose frames, each door having two
sunken panels. In the gable end, above, are two 6/6 sash. Between the windows and
doors is a painted sign, of unknown vintage with "Davis Meeting House 1875 Primitive
Baptist". The north, south, and west elevations each have two 9/6 sash. The south
elevation has a centered, interior brick chimney. The wood boxed cornice has a fascia
with a Greek ovolo moulding above.

The sanctuary has a random width pine board floor, plastered walls, and flat
plastered ceiling. The windows have pedimented surrounds. The top end of each side of
the surround is cut with an ogee profile that acts visually as a bracket supporting the
pediment above. The simple board benches have a sunken panel, with no panel mould or
margin, on each end. The benches are arranged in three columns, longer benches in the
center and shorter ones in the two end columns. The benches are loose but appear to
have always been arranged in this pattern, with two aisles corresponding to the two front
entrance. Centered on the south wall is an interior brick chimney, with a new furnace in
front of it. On the west end is a panelled pulpit with two closed-stringer stairs on both
the north and south sides. Each stringer has a single lying panel with a Greek ovolo
panel mould. The center section of the podium projects eastward about two feet, and the
lower half has a single, long lying panel with the same panel mould. This section is built
with cut nails. Above the top rail is projecting railing that matches the panel moulds in
profile. Above this is four sunken panels with no panel mould, and without a bottom
rail. At either end of both the lower and upper sections of the lecturn are paired



8. Significance Survey No. CARR-82

Period Areas of Significance—Check and justify below

___prehistoric archeology-prehistoric community planning —— landscape architecture _X_ religion

___1400-1499 archeology-historic _____conservation __law ____sclence

©  _1500-1599 agriculture ____economics ____literature ____ sculpture

_ 1600-1699 :X architecture __education ____ military ___ soclaV/

___1700-1799 ____art ____engineering ____ music humanitarian

_i( 1800-1899 ___ commerce — exploration/semement ___philosophy __ theater

_ 1900- ____ communications ___industry - politics/government ____transportation
____invention ____ other (specify)

Specific dates c. 1857 Builder/Architect

check: Applicable Criteria: _A _B AC _D

and/or

Applicable Exception: XA B C D E F G

Level of Significance: __nationmal __state ¥ local

Prepare both a summary paragraph of significance and a general statement of history and
support.

Summary: The Carroll Primitive Baptist Meeting House (also known as the Old School
Baptist Church or the Davis Meeting House) is built on a two-acre lot donated to the
church trustees by Henry Shipley Davis in November 1856. According to a recent
church history, the building was dedicated on 27 September 1857. It is very typical of
churches built in Carroll County throughout the nineteenth century, as most had two
entrances on one gable end and were a simple rectangular box. The use of a gallery was
not uncommon, although a majority of sanctuary’s did not have them. It is the only such
church of this denomination known in Carroll County. The virtually pristine condition of
the building, however, is much more unusual and gives this particular sanctuary added
significance.

Geographic Organization: Piedmont

Chronological/Development Periods: Agricultural-Industrial Transition A.D. 1815-1870
Historic Period Themes: Architecture, Religion

Resource Types: Meeting house, Rural vernacular

The Carroll Primitive Baptist Meeting House (also known as the Old School
Baptist Church or the Davis Meeting House) is built on a two-acre lot donated to the
church trustees by Henry Shipley Davis in November 1856. The deed did not give a
name to the meeting house, but stipulated in great detail that it was intended

" for the exclusive use and occupancy of the Baptist denomination who
reject as opposite extremes the distinguishing and unscriptural tenets of
both Armenians and absolute Predostinarians inclusive of all articles of
faith drawn up by clerical men as standards of orthodo(?) test of Christian
communion and who avow, own and claim as their distinguishing tenets the
leading doctrines of revelations viz salvation is of God, of God(?) mercy
abounding to the chicf of sinners through the obedience and atonement of

his Son, without circumscription; owning and acknowledging that an entire



9. Major Bibliographical References Survey No. CARR-82

Carroll County Land Records

1862 & 1877 Maps

"Old Carroll Primitive Baptist Church History." typescript, n.d.

"Carroll 014 School Baptist Church to celebrate 92nd anniversary." typescript, 1949
"Neither Adding Nor Taking Away" Melanie Sovine Reed, in Perspectives in Vernacular ?° hi-

10. Geographical Data te re

Acreage of nominated property _2acres
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List all states and counties for properties overlapping state or county boundaries
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11. Form Prepared By

nametitie Kenneth M. Short, Historic Planner

organization carro)) County Planming Department date June 18, 1993 = =
street & number 225 North Center Street telephone (410) 857-2145

City or town Westminster state MD

The Maryland Historic Sites Inventory was officially created by
an Act of the Maryland Legislature to be found in the Annotated
Code of Maryland, Article 41, Section 181 KA, 1974 supplement.

The survey and inventory are being prepared for information and
record purposes only and do not constitute any infringement of

individual property rights,

return to: Maryland Historical Trust
Shaw House
21 State Circle
Annapolis, Maryland 21401
(301) 269-2438
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MARYLAND HISTORICAL TRUST Survey No. CARR-82
STATE HISTORIC SITES INVENTORY FORM

Description (continued) Section 7 Page 2

pilasters. The moulding at the top of the lecturn also matches the panel moulds. The top
section of the lecturn is nailed to the lower section with wire nails. In the northeast
corner of the sanctuary is an enclosed winder staircase up to a balcony on the east end.
Under the stairs is a closet. The balcony is supported by a single center post with a
Greek ovolo moulding at the top. The parapet wall of the balcony has two lying panels,
one above the other, on either side of the center post.

KS/1h:6-17-93: CARRS2 .des



MARYLAND HISTORICAL TRUST Survey No. CARR-82
STATE HISTORIC SITES INVENTORY FORM

Significance (continued) Section 8 Page 2

humble, powerful dependence on the mercy of God through his Son to
involve all that is necessary to be experienced and believed, in order to
constitute a man an experimental and practical Christian; and that all such
professes, or now professes are entitled to their Christian Communion
restricting however their Sacramental communion to those who have
compiled with the preliminary law that is to say to those who on profession
of their faith and repentance have been immersed by a duly authorized
minister in the name of the Father and the Son and the Holy Spirit."”

According to a recent church history, the building was dedicated on 27 September
1857 as "The Davis Meeting House.”" Where this information came from is unknown.
The church was clearly standing by 1862, according to the Martenet Map. It is very
typical of churches built in Carroll County throughout the nineteenth century, as most had
two entrances on one gable end and were a simple rectangular box. The use of a gallery
was not uncommon, although a majority of sanctuary’s did not have them. The form and
layout of the Primitive Baptist Meeting House is no different than the much more
common Methodist Churches, though it is the only such church of this denomination
known in Carroll County. The virtually pristine condition of the building, however, is
much more unusual and gives this particular sanctuary added significance. Its survival
can perhaps be related to the general Primitive Baptist doctrine expressed as "neither
adding nor taking away," and by the proverb adopted by the Primitive Baptists:
"Remove not the ancient Landmark which thy fathers have set" (Proverbs 22:28). The
phrase Primitive Baptist refers to its connection to the Apostolic Church and the belief
that Primitive Baptists trace a direct line back to the church as founded by Christ when he
visited earth. As was noted in the deed, there is no interest in any articles of faith drawn
up by clerics.

KS/1h:5-26-93: CARRS2 sig
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